AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS NEWS/MEDIA ALLIANCE

Effective July 1, 2022

AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS

NEWS/MEDIA ALLIANCE

ARTICLE I

Name

The name of this corporation shall be News/Media Alliance (the "Alliance").

ARTICLE II

Membership

Section 1. *Eligibility*. The members of the Alliance shall consist of Voting Members and non-voting Associate Members (each as defined below).

Section 1.01 Voting Members. Any print and/or digital news or media organization with a dedicated professional editorial staff that creates, curates, and distributes original content concerning local, national, or international news, current events, enthusiast pursuits, or other matters of public interest on at least a weekly basis, and that is commercially marketed through subscriptions, advertising, and/or sponsorship, shall be eligible to be a Voting Member; provided, that if such content is distributed without any form of paid subscription then at least a minimum of 25% of the editorial content must consist of current news or media content. Any news or media organization satisfying the requirements above that is commonly owned by a Voting Member must also be a Voting Member of the Alliance.

Section 1.02 Non-Voting (Associate) Members. Any entity that supplies goods or services to a news or media organization or the news or media industry, including, but not limited to, any entity that represents a newspaper or other organization in the sale of advertising or distribution services, shall be eligible to be a non-voting member of the Alliance ("Associate Member" and, together with the Voting Members, the "Members"); provided, however, that companies that would qualify to be Voting Members shall not be eligible for this class of membership.

Section 2. *Membership Representative*. Upon admission to membership, and periodically thereafter, each Member shall designate a representative (the "Membership Representative") to receive and act on official communications from the Alliance and, if a Voting Member, to vote at the annual meeting, any special meeting or in any mail ballot. All executive officers of a Member not then serving as the Membership Representative of such Member shall be deemed "Member Participants" in the Alliance.

Section 3. *Admission to Membership*. A prospective member shall be admitted as a Member of the Alliance upon the approval of the Chairman, which admission shall be subject to confirmation by a vote of at least two thirds of the board of directors of the Alliance (the "Board of Directors") at the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors.

Section 4. Assent to Bylaws. Each Member, as a condition to its admission to the Alliance, shall agree to be bound by these bylaws.

Section 5. Duration of Membership; Withdrawal; Ineligibility.

- **Section 5.01** <u>Duration</u>. Membership in the Alliance shall commence upon confirmation by the Board of Directors and continue until terminated by withdrawal or otherwise in conformity with these bylaws. The right of a Member to vote and all rights, title and interest of a Member in or to the Alliance or any property of the Alliance shall cease upon the termination of membership.
- Section 5.02 <u>Withdrawal</u>. A Member may withdraw at any time upon six (6) months' prior written notice to the Chairman and shall, during such six- (6) month notice period, pay to the Alliance all dues, assessments, or other charges that are owed by the withdrawing Member to the Alliance, with such payment to be made at the time such amounts become due and payable to the Alliance.
- Section 5.03 <u>Ineligibility</u>. Should any Voting Member cease to meet the requirements set out in Section 1.02, it shall no longer be deemed qualified to be a Voting Member. Should any Membership Representative or Member Participant terminate his or her affiliation with the Member, he or she shall be deemed immediately not eligible for participation in Alliance activities, unless he or she shall become affiliated with another Member. In the event a Membership Representative is deemed ineligible, the relevant Member shall designate a successor.
- **Section 6.** *Rights of Members*. Each Member shall be entitled to the general services of the Alliance and for such other services as the Member may desire or require from time to time, not otherwise inconsistent with the laws under which the Alliance is acting or the provisions of these bylaws, provided that all dues, assessments and charges owed by the Member shall have been currently paid.
- **Section 7.** *Obligation to Members*. The services of the Alliance are intended solely for the use and benefit of the Members, and each Membership Representative and other persons designated to receive such services shall use those only for the benefit of Members of the Alliance, and shall not impart findings or information to any person, firm, organization, or corporation other than another Member without permission of the Alliance.

ARTICLE III

Dues, Assessments, Charges

- **Section 1.** *Dues, Members*. The basic annual dues for each class of Member shall be based on a formula fixed by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may change the annual dues formula as the fiscal needs of the Alliance may require. Any exceptions in the application of the dues structure must be approved by the Board of Directors.
- **Section 2.** Payment of Dues. Annual dues shall be due and payable at the time and in the manner as the Board of Directors shall determine. The Board has delegated the invoicing and collection of dues to the Alliance staff. Dues will be considered in arrears thirty (30) days after they are due

and payable.

Section 3. Assessments. At any special meeting of the Members called for such purpose, or at any regular meeting for which prior notice has been given of such matter to be considered, the Members of the Alliance upon recommendation of the Board of Directors may levy an assessment on all Members or any class of Members to provide funds to meet unexpected, unusual or emergency needs of the Alliance. Any such assessment will be applicable to every Member in direct proportion to the dues in effect at the time of the assessment.

Section 4. *Additional Charges*. From time to time the Alliance will provide to certain Members services which fall outside the scope of the general services of the Alliance. At that time, the Alliance staff and the President and Chief Executive Officer will advise the recipient of such services or others concerned that the work does not fall within the general services of the Alliance and that special charges will be levied for the work performed. Such charges will be based on staff time and expenses and will be due and payable with the next dues payment or as otherwise agreed. The President and Chief Executive Officer will inform the officers of the Alliance (the "Officers") and the Board of Directors periodically of any such arrangements, including the amount of the charges.

ARTICLE IV

Meetings of Members

- **Section 1.** Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the Members of the Alliance shall be held in the first six (6) months of the year in such city in the United States or Canada as the Board of Directors may designate.
- **Section 2.** Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called by the Chairman whenever a request in writing shall be received by the Secretary bearing the authorized signature of at least one-tenth (1/10) of the Voting Members of the Alliance, upon a majority vote of the members of the Board of Directors (the "Directors") present at a meeting and voting or upon the written request of the majority of the Board of Directors. No business shall be transacted at a special meeting except that specified in the written notice for such meeting.
- **Section 3.** *Notice of Meetings*. The Secretary shall give each Voting Member and, to the extent required by law, each Associate Member, written notice of all meetings by mail, in person, or by any form of electronic transmission consented to by such Member to whom the notice is given. The notice shall specify the date, place and hour of the meeting, and in the case of a special meeting, the business to be considered thereat. Such notice shall be given not less than ten (10) nor more than fifty (50) days before regular or special meetings. Notice by electronic transmission is deemed given if:
 - A. by facsimile telecommunication when directed to a telephone number at which the Member has consented to receive notice;
 - B. by electronic mail when directed to the record electronic address of the Member or

to such other electronic mail address at which the Member has consented to receive notice;

- C. by a posting on an electronic network together with separate written notice to the Member of such specific posting when such notice is directed to an address at which the Member has consented to receive notice, upon the later of such posting or the giving of such separate notice; and
- D. by any other form of electronic transmission to which the Member has consented.

A Member may revoke any such consent by giving written notice to the Secretary of the Alliance.

Publication in the regular journal or electronic newsletter of the Alliance shall be deemed to satisfy the requirements of notice if such journal or electronic newsletter, as applicable, is delivered to the Members by mail or electronically in accordance with the requirements set forth above in this Article IV, Section 3.

Section 4. *Quorum*. At special or annual meetings of the Members, a quorum shall be required for the transaction of business. To constitute a quorum there must be present (either in person or by proxy) and voting at least twenty-five (25) Voting Members of the Alliance, but if no quorum is present, a lesser number may adjourn from time to time until a quorum be present. Adjournment may be to such time and place as determined by the Members present and voting.

Section 5. *Vote and Representation*. Each Voting Member shall be entitled to one vote at all meetings of the Alliance, annual or special. The Voting Member may vote by proxy or may designate an alternate to cast its vote. Any question of qualifications to vote shall be determined by a majority of the Officers present at the meeting.)

Section 6. *Order of Business—Annual Meetings*. The following matters will be addressed at each annual meeting of the Members:

- A. Call to order
- B. Quorum determination
- C. Approval of minutes of the previous annual meeting of the Members
- D. Report of the Board of Directors regarding Membership
- E. Audit and financial reports of the Treasurer
- F. Report of Nominating Committee
 - 1. Election of Directors

- G. Other business
- H. Membership vote on official acts of Board of Directors since previous annual meeting of the Members
- I. Adjournment

ARTICLE V

Elections

Section 1. *Nominating Committee.* The Past Chairman shall serve as the Chairman of the Nominating Committee and the members of the Executive Committee shall serve as the members of the Nominating Committee. At each annual meeting of the members or special meeting of the Members duly called for the purpose of electing Directors, the Nominating Committee shall present to the Members, as applicable, a nominee or nominees for election as Directors to fill each vacancy on the Board of Directors, which may have occurred since the last annual meeting. In selecting nominees for election as Directors, the Nominating Committee shall adhere to such Board Nomination Guidelines as may be adopted from time to time by the Board of Directors.

Section 2. *Other Nominations—Directors*. After presentation of the report for nominees to the Board of Directors by the Nominating Committee, the Chairman will entertain nominations from the floor.

ARTICLE VI

Board of Directors and Executive Committee

- **Section 1.** *Size of Board*. The affairs of the Alliance shall be governed by its Board of Directors consisting of not less than twenty-five (25) nor more than forty (40) persons (inclusive of the Officers and the Past Chairman who shall serve as members of the Board of Directors). The Board of Directors shall determine such number within the range permitted by these bylaws for the ensuing year prior to each annual meeting and report that determination to the Members.
- **Section 2.** *Eligibility*. To be eligible to become a Director, a person shall be a Membership Representative of a Voting Member or a designated nominee of a Voting Member and shall be a senior executive of such Voting Member. Any Director who shall cease to be so qualified as aforesaid shall thereby cease to be a Director. No more than five (5) Directors shall be elected for at-large board seats who do not meet the qualifications of eligibility under this Section but would otherwise offer a valuable contribution to the Board that warrants such election to the Board.
- **Section 3.** Classes. The Board of Directors shall be divided into three (3) classes. One class shall be composed of the Past Chairman, the Chairman, the Vice Chairman, the Secretary and the Treasurer, all of whom shall serve as Directors during their term of office and until their successors are elected and qualified (where appropriate). Each of the remaining two classes of Directors shall be composed of half (or nearly half) of the remaining Directors elected as such who shall hold office for a period of two (2) years or such lesser period as is specified by the Directors and until

their successors are elected and qualified. The terms of such Directors in the second and third classes shall expire in alternate years.

- Section 4. *Election of Directors*. At each annual meeting or special meeting of the Members duly called for the purpose of electing Directors, the Voting Members shall elect Directors to succeed those whose terms expire at the time of such meeting and to fill any vacancies on the Board of Directors which may have occurred since the last annual meeting of the Members. Except for resignation, death or incapacity to serve by disqualification under Section 2 of Article VI or otherwise, Directors shall continue in office until their successors are elected and qualified. No person shall be elected as a Director for more than eight successive years (or serve a total of thirteen (13) successive years after taking into account those terms in which a person may serve as a member of the Board of Directors by virtue of holding office as Chairman, Vice Chairman, Treasurer, Secretary or serving as Past Chairman). Any person having served as a Director for such maximum consecutive period must wait at least two consecutive years thereafter before becoming eligible to serve as a Director again.
- **Section 5.** *Powers of the Board*. The Board of Directors shall have the power to do all acts and things not inconsistent with the Articles of Incorporation and the bylaws, which they may deem necessary or appropriate for the best interests of the Alliance.
- Section 6. Regular Meetings. The Board of Directors shall hold a regular meeting within ninety (90) days preceding the annual meeting of the Members and also another regular meeting during the second half of the year. It shall hold such meetings at such dates, times and places as it may deem proper and may fix by resolution dates for and hold such other regular meetings as it may deem proper and necessary. Written notice of such meetings shall be given to all members of the Board of Directors not less than ten (10) days in advance of the meeting by mail, in person or by a form of electronic transmission to which a Director has consented.
- Section 7. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the Chairman and shall be called by the Chairman or Secretary upon the written request of ten (10) Directors. Notice of all special meetings shall be given in writing to each Director at least ten (10) days before the date of meeting, which notice may be sent (A) either by the Secretary or the Chairman and (B) by mail, in person or by a form of electronic transmission to which such Director has consented.
- **Section 8.** *Quorum*. A majority of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum, but in case there is no quorum present, a lesser number may adjourn from time to time until a quorum be obtained. The meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at such places and times as the Directors may determine or as specified in the notices calling special meetings.
- **Section 9.** Annual Audit. The Board of Directors shall appoint an auditor whose duty it shall be to examine and audit annually the books, accounts and records of the Alliance and its activities as and when the Directors may direct. The report of the audit will be addressed to and presented to the Board of Directors.
- **Section 10.** *Delegation of Authority*. The Board of Directors shall have the power from time to time to delegate any of its powers that by law may be delegated to any committee, Officer or agent

to act for and in place of the Board of Directors, when not in session or for special purposes, designating their duties and powers in the resolution of appointment, and shall have power to appoint any incorporated company, person or persons, to be the agent or agents of the Alliance to perform such duties as may by law be delegated whenever deemed to be necessary in the conduct of the business of the Alliance.

- **Section 11.** *Vacancies*. Vacancies on the Board of Directors may be temporarily filled by a majority of the Directors until the next annual meeting of the Members.
- **Section 12.** *Order of Business*. The Board of Directors may adopt its own rules of order and order of business not inconsistent with the provisions of these bylaws.
- **Section 13.** *Unanimous Written Action.* Any action required or permitted to be taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors by these Bylaws or otherwise may be taken without a meeting, provided all Directors consent in writing and set forth in the same writing the action or decision taken or made. Consent in writing shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote.
- Section 14. Executive Committee. The Board of Directors shall establish and maintain an Executive Committee composed of the Past Chairman, the Chairman, the Vice Chairman, the Treasurer, the Secretary, the Chairman of the American Press Institute, Inc., and up to two (2) additional Directors appointed annually by the Chairman to ensure diversity. The Executive Committee shall meet regularly to provide advice to the Board of Directors and the President and Chief Executive Officer in all matters relating to the Alliance. The Executive Committee shall also act on behalf of the Board of Directors between meetings of the Board of Directors and shall have all the power and authority of the Board of Directors except that it may not (A) recommend action which the law requires to be acted upon by Members; (B) fill vacancies on the Board of Directors; (C) amend the articles of incorporation or bylaws; or (D) approve a plan of merger or the sale of substantially all of the Alliance's assets.

ARTICLE VII

Officers

- **Section 1.** *Election.* The Officers of the Alliance shall be a Chairman of the Board of Directors, a Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors, a Secretary, a Treasurer, a President and Chief Executive Officer, each to be appointed by the Board of Directors, and such other Vice Presidents as determined by the Board of Directors or the Officers from time to time. They shall hold office for two (2) years and until their successors are appointed and qualified and shall not be eligible for reappointment to such office. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person.
- **Section 2.** Appointments and Removals. Such other Officers, agents or employees as may from time to time be necessary in the conduct of the business of the Alliance may be appointed by the President and Chief Executive Officer. All Officers may be removed or suspended at any time by a vote of the Board of Directors as hereinbefore provided and appointees of the President and Chief Executive Officer may be removed by him or her at any time.

- **Section 3.** *Duties of Chairman*. The Chairman shall preside over all meetings of the Members of the Board of Directors at which he or she may be present and shall exercise supervision and control over the implementation of the general policies of the Alliance, subject to the direction of the Board of Directors. Upon the expiration of his or her term of office as Chairman, the Chairman shall become the Past Chairman and shall serve as a Director for a period of one year or until the expiration of the term of office of his or her successor as Chairman.
- **Section 4.** *Duties of Vice Chairman*. It shall be the duty of the Vice Chairman, in the absence or inability of the Chairman to act, to exercise all his or her powers and discharge all his or her duties, but in case of the absence or disability of both the Chairman and the Vice Chairman, a chairman pro tempore shall be chosen by the Board of Directors.
- **Section 5.** *Duties of Treasurer*. The Treasurer and his or her assistant shall receive all monies of the Alliance, safely keep the same and payout such sums as may be authorized by the Board of Directors in the manner and under such conditions as they may prescribe. There shall be kept an account of all transactions of his or her office and a report of the same shall be made to the Directors at all regular meetings. An Assistant Treasurer may be proposed by the Chairman with the approval of the Treasurer and confirmed by the Board of Directors. The Assistant Treasurer shall have access to the Officers and the Board of Directors.
- **Section 6.** *Duties of Secretary*. The Secretary shall attend all meetings of the Members and the Board of Directors and shall approve a true record of the proceedings thereof. He or she shall cause to be kept in the office of the Alliance all minutes of proceedings of all committees having any authority of the Board of Directors, letters, contracts, and other instruments in writing and documents not properly belonging to the office of the Treasurer; he or she shall be the custodian of the corporate seal and shall affix the same to all documents that require it. He or she shall also perform such other duties as may pertain to his or her office or which may be assigned by the Board of Directors. The Assistant Secretary shall have access to the Officers and the Board of Directors.
- **Section 7.** *Duties of President and Chief Executive Officer*. The President and Chief Executive Officer of the Alliance shall be the Alliance's chief executive. He or she is responsible to the Chairman, and shall confer regularly with the Alliance's Officers on all matters of Alliance policy, and on major matters of the Alliance's operations.

ARTICLE VIII

Standing and Special Committees

- **Section 1.** *Purpose*. The participation of Members in the Alliance's affairs shall be primarily through the medium of the Board of Directors, its standing committees, and the Member-based special committees of the Alliance. The committees shall be advisors in policy matters to the Officers, the Board of Directors, the Executive Committee, and the Members.
- **Section 2.** Standing Committees of the Board. The Board of Directors shall establish three (3) standing committees, and may establish other standing committees of the Board of Directors as required. The members and chairmen of such standing committees shall serve from the time of

their appointment until their respective successors are appointed or otherwise selected in accordance with these bylaws.

- A. Audit Committee. The Audit Committee shall engage an independent audit firm, which shall report directly to the Audit Committee, in order to provide assurance that the Alliance's books and records are reasonable and in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and that all necessary tax and legal filing requirements are satisfied. The chairman and members of the Audit Committee shall be appointed from and among the members of the Board of Directors.
- B. *Finance Committee*. The Finance Committee shall be responsible for review and approval of material financial decisions and shall be responsible for maintaining oversight of the Alliance's investment funds. The chairman of the Finance Committee shall be the Treasurer and the members of the committee shall be appointed from and among the members of the Board of Directors.
- C. Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee shall be responsible for review and approval of executive staff compensation. The Chairman of the Board shall be the chairman of the Compensation Committee. The Vice Chairman, Secretary, Treasurer, and Past Chairman shall constitute the remaining members of the committee.
- **Section 3.** *Special Committees*. The Alliance may have one or more special committees comprised of Membership Representatives or other officials of any Alliance Member and, to the extent desired, members of the Board of Directors. Such special committees shall be reconstituted annually following the annual meeting of the Members with the old committee continuing to serve until the new one is announced. Special committee members will be named, and the committee chairman designated by the Chairman, with the advice of the Board of Directors and in conformity with committee guidelines adopted from time to time by the Board of Directors.
- **Section 4.** *Committee Staff.* The President and Chief Executive Officer will name one (1) or more of the Alliance's staff to provide assistance to each committee.

ARTICLE IX

Suspension and Expulsion of Members

Section 1. Suspension of Membership. When any Member's Dues are in arrears under the provisions of Section 2 of Article III, or when any other assessments or charges against any Member are thirty (30) days or more past due, the Board of Directors shall serve such Member with notice that its rights and privileges as a Member shall be automatically suspended if such Dues, assessments or charges are not paid in full within thirty (30) days; provided, however, that suspension shall not occur if such Member requests within ten (10) days of receiving such notice that it be afforded an opportunity to be heard in its own behalf prior to suspension. Such request shall be directed to the Board of Directors, which may conduct a hearing within thirty (30) days of receiving such request or defer the matter for presentation to the Board of Directors at its next regular meeting or at a special meeting called for the purpose.

- **Section 2.** *Service to Stop*. Upon the suspension of a Member the publication service and all other services by the Alliance to or for such Member shall be discontinued and the suspension may be reported to the Members of the Alliance in any publication issued thereafter. Such suspension may be reversed with reinstatement of the Member only by the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the whole Board of Directors.
- **Section 3.** *Rights of Members Suspended.* Upon repeal of the suspension as above provided, any Member shall again become entitled to all rights and privileges upon paying any dues, assessments and charges then due and unpaid.
- Section 4. Right of Directors to Expel. The Board of Directors shall have the right as hereafter set forth to expel a Member at any regular meeting or at a special meeting called for the purpose whenever such action is believed necessary to protect the welfare of the Alliance and the interest of its Members. The Board of Directors shall only entertain a motion to expel upon a presentation in writing signed by five Members of the Board of Directors, and such presentation shall be filed with the Secretary of the Alliance at least two weeks prior to the meeting of the Board of Directors. The Secretary shall within twenty-four (24) hours send to such Member a copy of such presentation, together with notice of the time and place of the meeting of the Board of Directors at which time the same will be considered, which meeting such Member shall be entitled to attend and be heard in its own behalf.
- **Section 5.** *Votes Necessary to Expel*. Whenever a Member is presented for expulsion in the manner hereinbefore provided, it may be expelled only by the affirmative vote of four-fifths of all the votes of the entire Board of Directors, whereupon its name shall be expunged from the rolls of the Alliance and it shall forfeit all its rights and privileges.
- **Section 6.** *Readmission*. A Member who has been expelled shall be eligible for readmission only (A) upon the terms and conditions applicable to new Members and (B) to the extent such Member has paid to the Alliance all outstanding membership dues which were due and payable to the Alliance and unpaid at the time of such Member's expulsion.

ARTICLE X

Indemnification

Section 1. *Indemnification*. The Alliance shall indemnify any Director, any former Director, any person who while a Director of the Alliance may have served at its request as a director, officer, partner, trustee, employee or agent of another foreign or domestic corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise, and shall indemnify any Officer or employee against any and all expenses and liabilities actually and necessarily incurred by him or her or imposed on him or her in connection with any claim, action, suit, or proceeding (whether actual or threatened, civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative, including appeals) to which he or she may be or is made a party by reason of being or having been such Director, Officer, employee or agent; subject to the limitation, however, that there shall be no indemnification in relation to matters unless such person (A) conducted himself or herself in good faith; (B) believe in the case of conduct in his or her official capacity with the Alliance that

his or her conduct was in the best interests of the Alliance; and believed, in all other cases, that his or her conduct was at least not opposed to the best interests of the Alliance; or (C) in the case of any criminal proceeding, he or she had no reasonable cause to believe that his or her conduct was unlawful. Further, there shall be no indemnification (1) in connection with a proceeding by or in the right of the Alliance in which the Director, Officer, employee or agent was judged liable to the Alliance, or (2) in connection with any other proceeding charging improper personal benefit to him or her, whether or not involving action in his or her official capacity, in which he or she was adjudged liable on the basis that personal benefit was improperly received by him or her. Indemnification of any person arising out of a proceeding brought by or in the right of the Alliance is limited to reasonable expenses incurred in connection with the proceeding.

The Alliance also shall indemnify a Director upon order of a court of competent jurisdiction. The Alliance, otherwise, shall indemnify a person pursuant to these bylaws only after making a determination that the person is entitled to indemnification pursuant to the procedures provided in §13.1-880 of the Virginia Nonstock Corporation Act.

Amounts paid in indemnification of expenses and liabilities may include, but shall not be limited to, counsel fees and other fees, costs and disbursements; judgments, fines, and penalties against, and amounts paid in settlement by, such Director, Officer, employee or agent. The Alliance shall pay for or reimburse the reasonable expenses in advance of final disposition of the proceeding provided that the provisions of §13.1- 878 of the Virginia Nonstock Corporation Act are met.

The provisions of this Article shall be applicable to claims, actions, suits, or proceedings made or commenced after the adoption hereof, whether arising from acts or omissions to acts occurring before or after adoption hereof.

The indemnification provided by this Article shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which such Director, Officer, or employee may be entitled under any statute, bylaw, agreement, vote of the Board of Directors, or otherwise and shall not restrict the power of the Alliance to make any indemnification permitted by law.

Section 2. *Insurance.* The Board of Directors may authorize the Alliance to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any Director, Officer, employee or agent of the Alliance against any liability asserted against or incurred by him or her which arises out of such person's status in such capacity or who is or was serving at the request of the Alliance as a director, officer, employee or agent of another foreign or domestic corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or otherwise, or out of acts taken in such capacity, whether or not the Alliance would have the power to indemnify the person against that liability under law.

ARTICLE XI

Amendments to Bylaws

Section 1. Amendment. These bylaws may be amended by (A) an affirmative vote cast by a majority of the Voting Members present at any meeting of the Members convened upon due notice

of the proposed amendment or (B) an affirmative action of two-thirds of the entire Board of Directors at any meeting of the Board of Directors convened upon due notice of the proposed amendment.